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Independent auditors report to the Sharenolders of Ranign
Refining and Petrochemical Gompany

We have audited the financial statements of Rabigh Refining and Petrochemicat Company ("the Company’),
which comprise the statement of financial position as at December 31, 2018, the statements of profit or loss,
comprehensive income, changes in equity and cash flows for the year then ended, and notes, comprising
significant accounting policies and other explanatory information.

In our gpinlon, the accompanying financial stalements present faiely, in all material respects, the financial
position of the Company as at December 31, 2018, and its financial performance and its cash flows for the
year then ended in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards {IFRS} that are endorsed
in the Kingdom of Saudi Arabla and other standards and pronouncements issued by the Saudi Organization
for Certified Public Accountants (SOCPA).

We conducled our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing that are endorsed in the
Kingdom of Saudi Arabia, Our responsibilities under those standards are further described in the Auditors’
Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements section of our report. We are independent of the
Gompany in accordance with the professional code of conduct and ethics that are endorsed in the Kingdom
of Saudi Arabia that are relevant to our audit of the financial statements, and we have fulfilled our other
ethical responsibilities in accordance with these requirements, We believe that the audit evidence we have
obtained is sufficient and appropriate fo provide a basis for our opinion.

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment, were of most significance in our audit
of the financial statements of the current period, These matiers were addressed in the context of our audit
of the financlal statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate
opinion on these matters,

1
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Independent auditors report fo the Sharenoiders of Rabion
Refining and Petrochemical Company cortred

See Note 3(o) to the financial statements for the accounting policy of Zakat and income tax and note 24 and

25 for the disclosure.
The key audit matter

The Company has recognized a deferred tax credit
of SR ©7.79 million in the statement of profit or loss
and other comprehensive come for the year
ended December 31, 2018 and as at that date the
net deferred tax asset balance amounted to SR
445,88 milion. Refer notes 24 and 26 to the
financial statements for related disciosures.

The General Authority for Zakat and Tax {GAZT)
issuad assessments for the years 2000 through
2016 which resulted in additional Zakat and income
tax demands in the amount of SR 1,348.7 million
and SR 387.8 million respectively. The Company
had filed an appeal with the Higher Appellate
Committee (HAC) against the assessment for the
years 2009 and 2010 and submitted a bank
guarantee amounting to Saudi Riyals 43.5 million.
The General Secretariat of Tax Commitlees
(GSTC) has requested certain information from the
Company in respect of the appeal relating to the
years 2009 — 2010 to be able to support the newly
formed Higher Committee of Tax for Conflict and
Dispute (HCTCD) which the Gompany has duly
submitted. As for the assessmenti years 2011 fo
2016, the objection has been transferred by the
GAZT to the recently formed Internal Setflement
Committee (ISC). ISC has requested certain
information from the Company In respect of the
appeal relating to the ysars 2011~ 2016 which the
Company has duly submitted. ISC’s resolution
relating to assessment years 2011 — 2016 is
awatted. Accordingly, no Zakat or fax provision has
been made in the financial statements relating to
such demands. Any addiional Zakat and tax
demand that arises on finalization of the
assessments is recoverable, through distributable
earnings, to the extent of SR 808.8 million and SR
377.7 million, respectively, from the founding
shareholders of the Cormpany. Refer note 24 for
further details,

We considered these matlers as a key audit matter
due to the judgement involved in the assessment of
whether any provision needs 1o be recognized with
respect to additional Zakat and income tax demand
raised by GAZT.

How the matter was addressed in our audit

We performed the following procedures:

Obtained deferred tax computation performed by
the management and  svaluated the
reasonableness of such computations.

Assessed the estimates and judgements applied
by management in determining the recoverability
of the deferred tax asset balance outstanding at
December 31, 2018.

Reviewed future projections made by the
management specifically In respec! of Phase ii.

Analyzed the differences between the amounts
reported by the Company in Zakat and income
tax returns against the amounts assessed by
GAZT and obtained an understanding of the
nature of such differences and the possibility of
any potential outflow of economic benefits.

Held discussions with the Company’s Zakat and
tax consultants about the nature of the
differences and thelr assessment of the
likelihood of any additional Hability.

involved our Zakat and Tax expert to review the
Zakat and tax and deferred tax computations,
status of assessments and correspondence, if
any, with the GAZT.

Assessed the adequacy and appropriateness of
the disclosure included in the financial
statements,
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Inciepencent auditors report to the Sharenolders 0of Rabigh Refining and
Petrochermicel Gompany (contnued)

The financial statements of Rabigh Refining and Petrochemical Company for the year ended December
31, 2017 were audited by another auditor who expressed an unmodified opinion thereon vide their report
dated March 7, 2018.

Management is responsible for the other information. The other information comprises the information
included in the annual report but does not include the financial statements and our auditors' report thereon.
The annual report is expected to be made available to us after the date of this auditors’ report.

Our opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other information and we will not express any
form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the financial statements, our responsibility is lo read the other information
identified above when it becomes available and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is
materially inconsistent with the financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit, or otherwise
appears o be materially misstated.

When we read the annual report, if we conclude that there is a material misstatement therein, we are
required to communicate the maiter to those charged with governance.

Management Is responsible for the preparation and falr presentation of the financial slatements In
accordance with IFRS that are endorsed in the Kingdom of Saudi Arabia and other slandards and
pronouncements issued by SOCPA, the applicable requirements of the Regulations for Companies and
Company's By-laws and for such internal controf as management determines is necessary to enable the
preparation of financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.
In preparing the financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the Company's ability lo
confinue as & going concerr, disclosing, as applicable, matiers related to going concern and using the going
concern basls of accounting unless management either Intends 1o liquidate the Company or to cease
operations, or has no reafistic alternative but fo do so.

Those charged with governance are responsible for overseeing the Company's financial repotting process.

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are
free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and 1o issue an auditors’ report that includes
our opinion. ‘Reasonable assurance' is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit
conducted in accordance with International Standards on Auditing that are endorsed in the Kingdom of Saudi
Arabia, will always detect a materlal misstatement when it exists, Misstatements can arise from fraud or
error and are considered material if, individually or in agaregate, they could reasonably be expectad to
influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these financiai statements.




Independent auditors report tothe Sharenoiders of Ranigh Refinind and
Petrochemical Company (continued)

As part of an auditin accordance with International Standards on Auditing that are endorsed in the Kingdom
of Saudi Arabia, we exercise professional judgement and maintain professional scepticism throughout the
audit. We also:

o Ideniify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud
or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that
is sufficlent and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The rigk of not detecting a material
misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may invalve
colluslan, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations or the override of internal control.

» Obtain an understanding of intemal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit proceduras
that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the
effectiveness of the Company’s internal control.

« Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting
estimates and related disclosures made by management.

« Conclude an the appropriateness of management's use of the going concern basis of accounting and,
based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists refated to evenls or
conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Company’s ability 1o continue as a going concern. i
we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, then we are required to draw attention in our auditors’
report to the related disclosures in the financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to
modify our opinion. Qur conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our
auditors’ report. However, future events or conditions may cause the Company o cease to continue
as a going concern.

¢ Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financlial statements, including the
disclosures, and whether the financlat statements represent the underlying transactions and evenis in
a manner that achieves fair presentation.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, amang other matters, the planned scope
and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control
that we identify during our audit of Rabigh Refining and Petrochemical Company ("the Company").

We also provide those charged with govemance with a statemen! that we have complied with relevant ethical
requirements regarding independence, and communicate with them all relationships and other matters that
may reasonably be thought 1o bear on our independence and where applicable, related safeguards.

From the matters communicated with those charged with governance, we determine those matters that were
of most significance in the audit of the financial statements of the current period and are therefore the key
audit matters. We describe these matters in our auditors’ report unless law or regulation preciudes public
disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a matter should
not be communicated in our regort because the adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably be
expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such commuhication.

For KPMG Al Fozan & Partners
Certified Public Accountants

Ebrahim Ooud Baesen
License No. 382

February 19, 2019 el
Corresponding to Jumada Al Thani 14, 1440H




RABIGH REFINING AND PETROCHEMICAL COMPANY

(A Saudi Joint Stock Company)

Statement of profit or loss

{Ali arnounts in thousands of Saudi Riyals unless otherwise stated)

December 31,

Notes 2018 2017
Sales 5,26 40,998,191 34,211,010
Cost of sales 6,26 {38,683,150) {31,614,988)
Gross profit 2,315,041 2,696,024
Other incoms, net g 88,584 50,865
Selling and marketing expenses 7 (439,574) (73,782)
General and administrative expenses 8 {948,044) (960,289)
Operating profit 1,016,007 1,703,818
Finance cost 10 {465,765} {445,974)
Financial income 302,832 257,797
Profit hefore Zakat and income fax 853,074 1,515,641
Zakat 24 {44,141} (29,687)
income tax 24 (140,373) (62,977)
Net profit after Zakat and income tax 668,560 1,422 977
Earnings per share (Saudi Riyals) - Basic and diluted 11 0.76 1,62

The accompanying notes 1 to 29 form an integral part of these financial statements.




RABIGH REFINING AND PETROCHEMICAL COMPANY

{A Saudi Joint Stock Company)
Statement of comprehensive income
{All amounts in thousands of Saudi Rlyals unless otherwise stated)

December 31,

Notes 2018 2017
Net profit after Zakat and income tax 668,660 1,422,977
Remeasurement loss on defined benefit plan 22 {13,367) {18,040}
Income tax effect 24 2,005 2,706
ltems that will not be reclassified to statement of profit
or loss in subsequent periods {11,362) {15,334)
Total comprehensive income for the year 857,198 1,407,643

The accompanying notes 1 to 28 form an integral part of these financial statements,




RABIGH REFINING AND PETROCHEMICAL COMPANY

{A Saudi Joint Stock Company)
Staternent of financial position

{All amounts in thousands of Saudi Riyals unless olherwise stated)

Assets

Non-current assets
Property, plant and equipment
Leased assels

intangible assets

Long-term loans

Investment

Deferred tax asset

Current assets

inventories

Trade receivables

Current portion of long-term loans
Prepayments and other receivables
Time deposits

Cash and cash equivalents

Total assets

Equity and liabilities

Equity

Share capital

Statutory reserve

Employee share owniership pian
Retained earnings

Total equity

Non-current liablities

Loans, borrowings and other long-term liability
Liabilities against finance leases
Employees’ henefils

Current liabilities

Short-term borrowings

Current maturity of liabilities against finance leases
Trade and other payables

Accrued expenses and other liabilities

Zakat and income tax payable

Total liabilities
Total equity and liabilities

Notes

12
13
14
15
18
25

18
15
15
19
17
16

20
21
22

15
13
22

15
13
15
23
25

December 31,
2018 2017
44,628,314 43,971,487
393,174 417,360
111,443 123,513
3,861,749 4,051,329
16,412 16,412
445,882 340,092
49,457,574 48,928,193
3,207,445 3,022,322
6,004,714 5,741,361
420,428 404,248
2,084,488 941,517
1,655,605 1,479,073
1,263,713 1,158,263
14,636,393 12,746,784
64,083,967 61,674,977
8,760,000 8,760,000
249,465 183,745
(6,241) (7,098}
1,538,796 1,149,160
10,542,020 10,085,807
27,688,017 36,812,511
463,576 481,953
510,501 420,707
28,662,004 37,715,171
13,007,404 3,715,280
19,540 18,413
10,163,333 9,221,871
1,425,990 610,393
273,496 308,042
24,889,853 13,873,989
53,551,947 51,580,170
64,093,967 61,674,977

The accompanying notes 1 to 29 form an integral part of these financtal staternents.




RABIGH REFINING AND PETROCHEMICAL COMPANY

{A Saudi Joint Stock Cempany)
Statement of changes tn equity

{All amounts in thousands of Saudi Riyals unless otherwise stated)

Notes

Balance as at January 1, 2018

Net profit after Zakat and income 1ax
Other comprehensive loss

Total comprehensive income

Transfer to statutory reserve 21
Vesting of shares under employee
share ownership plan

Dividend 28
Income tax reimbursements
Balance ag at December 31, 2018

Balance as at January 1, 2017

Net profit after Zakat and income tax
Other comprehensive loss

Total comprehensive income

Transfer to statutory reserve 21
Vesting of shares under employee

share ownership plan
Zakat and income fax

reimbursements

Balance as at December 31, 2017

Employee Retained
share earnings
Share Statutory ownership {accumulated
capital reserve plan deficit) Total
8,760,000 183,745 (7,098) 1,149,160 10,085,807
- - - 668,560 668,560
. - - (11,362) (11,362
- - - 657,198 657,198
- 85,720 - {65,720) -
" - 857 - 857
- - - (438,000}  (438,000)
- - - 236,158 236,158
8,760,000 249,465 (6,241} 1,538,796 10,542,020
8,760,000 87,343 (8,207} {443,620) 8,395516
- - - 1422977 1,422,977
- - - {16,334) {15,334
- - - 1,407,643 1,407,643
- 96,402 - {96,402) -
- - 1,109 - 1,109
- - - 281,539 281,539
8,760,000 183,745 (7,098} 1,149,160 10,085,807

The accompanying notes 1 to 29 form an integral part of these financial statements.




RABIGH REFINING AND PETROCHEMICAL COMPANY
(A Saudi Joint Stock Company)
Statement of cash flow

{(All amounts in thousands of Saudi Riyals unless atherwise stated)

Cash flows from operating activities
Profit before Zakat and income tax

Adijustments for non-cash items
Depreciation
Finance cost
Financial income
Amortization
Provision for slow moving inventorles
Provision for doubtful receivables
1.oss on disposal of property and equipment

Changes in working capital
Trade receivables
inventories
Prepayments and other receivables
Trade and other payables
Accrued expenses and other liabilities
Employees benefits

Zakat and income tax paid

interest received

Interest paid

Net cash generated from operating activities

Cash flows from Investing activities
Purchase of property, plant and equipment
Addition to intangible assets

Net movement in time deposiis

Long-term foan disbursements

Net cash used in investing activities

Cash flows from financing activities
Proceeds irom loans and borrowings
Repayments of loans and borrowings
Repayment of finance leases
Dividend paid

Net cash used in financing activities

Net increase / (decrease} in cash and cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of the year
Cash and cash equivalents at end of the year

Supplemental schedule of non-cash information
Income tax reimbursable from shareholders
Addition to property, plant and eguipment through accrued
expenses and other fiabilities
‘Long-term loan repaymenis settled against capacity
payments

Notes

12,13

14
18

261

12

28

16
16

Year ended December 31,

2018 2017
853,074 1,515,641
2,419,861 2,427,863
465,765 445,974
{302,832) {257,797)
13,234 13,156
22,491 10,078
73 -
21,769 1,267
3,493,435 4,156,182
(263,428) (2,044,674)
(207,615) (773,427)
{905,988) (75,659)
1,349,559 2,371,359
667,816 (515,476)
77,284 60,513
4,211,067 3,178,818
{314,845) {68,350)
281,916 238,719
{234,664) (256,276)
3,943,474 3,002,811
{2,927,816) (2,604,915)
{1,164) (1,081)
{176,531} {192,823)
{219,613 (49,303)
(3,325,124} (2,845,002)
3,287,625 10,500,000
(3,316,332) (10,924,425)
(46,921) {46,025)
{437,272) (1)
(512,900 (471,351)
105,450 (223,532)
1,158,263 1,381,795
1,263,713 1,158,263
236,158 281,539
147,055 267,621
388,000 302,525

The accompanying notes 1 to 29 form an integral part of these financial stalements.




RABIGH REFINING AND PETROCHEMIGAL COMPANY

{A Saudi Joint Stock Company)

Notes to the financial statements for the year ended December 31, 2018
{All amounts in thousands of Saudi Riyals unless otherwise stated)

General information

Rabigh Refining and Petrochemical Company (*the Company” or “PetroRabigh™} Is a company ragistered in the
Kingdom of Saudi Arabia under Commercial Registration No. 4602002161 issued by tha Ministry of Commerce,
Jeddah, on Shaaban 15, 1426H {September 19, 2005) subsequenlly revised by the Minisiry of Commerce and
Investment, Riyadh on Shawat 22, 1428H (November 3, 2007).

The Company is engaged in the development, construction and operation of an integrated refining and
petrochemical complex, including the manufacturing and sales of refined and petrochemicat products.

The Company's registered address Is P.O. Box 101, Rabigh 21911, Kingdom of Saudi Arabia.

During the three-month period ended March 31, 2015, the Company acquired ihe Expansion Project of its existing
integrated petroleum refining and petrochemical complex ('Phase 1| Expansion Project”) from Saudi Arabian Oil
Company and Sumitomo Chemical Company {Founding shareholders of the Campany), upon comptetion of the
formalities underlying the novation of relevant contracts and fulfiment of precedent conditions. The aggregate
cost of the Phase | Expansicn Project is currently estimated at Saudi Riyals 36 billion, the completion of which is
estimated to be during first half of 2019 (also see Note 12).

Basis of preparation

These financial statements of the Company have been prepared in accordance with International Financial
Reporting Standards (IFRS) as endorsed by Saudi Organization for Certified Public Accountants {8OCPA}inthe
Kingdom of Saudi Arabia as well as other standards and pronouncements issued by SOCPA (colloctively referred
to as “IFRS as endorsed in KSA").

These financial statements have been prepared on a historical cost tasis except for investment which is measured
at fair value through statement of profit or loss, These financial statements are presented in Saudi Arabian Riyals
(Saudi Riyals).

24 New standards, interpretations and amendments adoepted

Since the Company has prepared these financial statements in accordance with IFRS as endorsed by SOCPA,
all standards, Interpretations and amendments as applicable to the Company are considered until the relevant
adoption date,

(a) Standards, interpretations and amendments adopted

IFRS 15 — Revenue from Contracts with Cus{omers

The Company has adepted IFRS 15 from January 1, 2018 using modified refrospective method (see Note on
Revenue under summary of significant accounting policies). Accordingly, the comparative information has not
heen restated and continues to be reported under 1AS 18 - Revenue. Previously, the Company was recognising
revenue net of certaln selling and marketing expenses which are incurred and separately invoiced by the
marketers (customers). As per IFRS 15, the Company accounts for consideration payable to a customer as a
reduction of the transaciion price unless both the fellowing conditions are met;

- the payment to the customer is in exchange for distinct goods or services that the customer transfers to the
entity, and

- the fair value of said goods or services can be determined.

The Company has assessed that these selling and markefing expenses are in respect of distinct goads or services
that the Company recelves from customers and the falr value of the sald expenses can also be measured as
these are separately invoiced to the Company supported by actual invoices. Accordingly, in 2018, these expenses
have not been deducted from revenue and are classified as selling and marketing expenses. The table below
summarizes the impact of adoption of IFRS 15 on the financial statements for the year ended December 31, 2018.

Year ended December 31, 2018 Impact of adoption
As perIFRS 15 As per old policy of JIFRS 15

Sales 40,998,181 40,637,812 360,378

Selling and marketing expenses B 439,574 79,195 (360,379)
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RABIGH REFINING AND PETROCHEMICAL COMPANY

{A Saudi Joint Stock Company)

Notes to the financial statements for the year ended Decernber 31, 2018
(Al amaounts in thousands of Saudi Riyals unless otherwise stated)

Basis of preparation {continued)
{b) Standards, intetpretations and amendments issued but not yet effective

The standards, interpretations and amendments issued, but not yet effectiva up to the date of issuance of the
financlal statements are disclosed below. The Company intends to adopt these standards, where applicable, when

they become effective.
Fffective from periods

Standard / beginning on or after

Interpretation Description the following dale

IFRS 16 Leases January 1, 2019

IFRIC 23 Uncertainty over income lax reatrment January 1, 2018

IFRS 9 Prepayment features with negative compensation January 1, 2019
(Amendments to IFRS 9)

IAS 28 Long-term interests in assoclates and joint ventures January 1, 2019
{Amendments to IAS 28)

IFRS 3, IFRS 11, Annual improvements to IFRS 2015 -2017 cycle January 1, 2019

IAS 12 and 1AS 23 (Amendments to IFRS 3, IFRS 11, IAS 12 and 1AS 23}

iAG 19 Plan amendment, curtailment or setlement (Amendments fo January 1, 2019
1AS 19)

Conceplual Amendments to References to Conceptual Framework in January 1, 2020

Framework IFRS Standards

IFRS 17 Insurance contacts January 1, 2021

IFRS 10 and IAS 28 Sale or contribution of assets between invesior and its Available for optional
associate or joint venture (amendments to IFRS 10 and 1AS adoption / effective date
28) deferred indefinitely

IFRS 16 - Leases

{FRS 16 was issued in January 2016 and it replaces 1AS 17 - Leases, FRIC 4 - Determining whether an
arrangement containg a lease, SIC-15 Operating leases - Incentives and SIC-27 Evaluating the substance of
transactions involving the legal form of a lease. IFRS 16 sets out the principles for the recognition, measurement,
presentation and disclosure of leases and requires lessees {0 account for all leases under a single on-balance
sheet model similar to the accounting for finance leases under |AS 17. The standard includes two recognition
exemptions for lessees — leases of 'low-value’ assets and short-term leases (i.e., leases with & lease term of 12
months or fess). At the commencement date of a lease, a lessee will recognise a liability to make lease payments
{i.e., the lease liability) and an asset representing the right 1o use the underlying asset during the lease term (i.e.,
the right-of-use asset). Lessees will be required to separately recognise the interest expense on the lease liabllity
and the deprecialion expense on the right-of-use asset.

Lesseas will be also required to remeasure the lease liability upon the occurrence of certain events {e.g., a change
in the lease term, a change in future lease payments resulting from a ehangs in an index or rate used fo deterrmine
those payments), The lessee will generally recognise the amount of the remeasurement of the lease liability as
an adjustment to the right-of-use asset.

Lessor accounting under IFRS 16 is substantially unchanged from accourting under IAS 17.1essors will continue
1o classify all leases using the same classification principle as in IAS 17 and distinguish between two types of
leases — operating and finance lsases,

IFRS 18, which is effective for annual periods baginning on or after January 1, 2018, requires lessees and lessors
to make more extensive disclosures than under [AS 17.

The Company plans to adopt IFRS 16 on the required effective date using the modified retrospective method and
therefore comparative information will not be restated and cortinued o be reported under IAS 17 and JFRIC 4.

The Company will elect fo use the exemptions proposed by the standard on lease contracts for which the lease
terms ends within 12 months as of the date of initial application, and lease contracts for which the underlying asset
is of low value. The Company has leases of cerlain office equipment that are considered of low value,

The Company has performed a detailed impact assessment of IFRS 16. In summary, the impact of adopting IFRS
16 on the date of adoption is expected to be as follows:

Assets

Right-to-use assets 12,357,463
Prepayments and other receivables (12,649)
Tatal right-to-use assets 12,344,814
Lease liabilities 12,344,814

11




RABIGH REFINING AND PETROCHEMICAL COMPANY

(A Saudi Joint Stock Company)

Notes to the financial statements for the year ended December 31, 2018
{All amounts in thousands of Saudi Riyals unless otherwise stated)

Basis of preparation {continued)

Due ta the adoption of IFRS 16, the Company's operating profit will improve, while its interest expense wil
increase. This is due to the change in the accounting for expenses of leases that were classified as operating
leases under IAS 17,

IFRS 16 further requires additiona! disclosure for which the Company has considered required changes in the
related procedures necessary to coflect and disclose the required information.

Except for the effects of IFRS 16 disclosed above, the standards, amendmenis of interpretations with effective
date of January 1, 2019 will not have any material impact on the Company’s financial statements, whereas for
other above mentioned standards, amendmernts or interpretations, the Company is currently assessing the
implications on the Gompany's financial statements on adoption.

2.2 Critical accounting estimates and judgments

The preparation of Company's financial statements requires management to make judgments, estimates and
assumptions that affect the reporfed amourts of revenues, expenses, assets, liabilittes and accompanying
disclosures. Uncertainty about these assumptions and estimates cauld result in outcomes that require a material
adjustment fo the carrying amount of the asset or liability affected in future periods.

The key assumptions concerning the future and other key sources of estimation unceriainty at the reporting date,
that have a significant risk of causing a material adjustment to the carrylng amounis of assets and Habilities within
the next financlal pericd, are described below. The Company based its assumptions and estimates on parameters
available when the financial statements were prepared. Existing circumstances and assumptions about fulure
developments, however, may change due to market changes or clrcurnstances arising beyond the control of the
Company. Such changes are reflected in the assumptions when they ocour,

Business model for managing financial assets

In making an assessment whether its business model for managing financial assets is to hold assets in order to
collect contraciual cash flows, the Company considers the following:

: Managements stalad policies and objectives for the asset and the operation of those policies in practice;
- how managemen evaluates the performance of the asset;

- whether management's strategy focuses on earning contractual income;

- f{he degree of frequency of any axpected asset sales;

- the reason for any asset sales; and

. whether assels that are sold are held for an extended pericd of time relative to their contractual malurity or
are sold shortly after acquisition or an extended time before maturity.

Generally, a business model is & matter of fact which can be evidenced by the way the pusiness is managed and
the information provided to management.

Confractual cash flows of financial assets

The Company exercises judgment in determining whether the contractual terms of financial assets it originates or
acquires give rise on specific dates to cash flows that are solely payments of principal and interest income on the
principal cutstanding and so may qualify for amortised cost measurement. In making the assessment, the
Company considers all contractual terms, including any prepayment terms or provisions to extend the maturity of
the assets that change the amount and timing of cash flows and whether the contractual terms contain leverage.

Defined benefit plan

The cast of post-employment defined benefits are the present value of the related obligation, as determined using
sctuarial valuations. An actuarial valuation involves making various assumptions which may differ from actual
developments in the future. These include the determination of the discount rate, future salary increases,
withdrawal before normal retirement age, mortality rates, etc. e to the complexity of the valuation, the underlying
assumptions and its long-term nature, a defined benefit obligation fs sensitive 1o changes In these assumptions.
All assumplions are reviewed at each reporiing date.
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Notes to the financial statements for the year ended December 31, 2018
{All amounts in thousands of Saudi Riyals unless otherwise stated)

Basis of preparation (continued)

The parameter most subject to change is the discount rate, With respect to determining the appropriate discount
rate, yield and duration of high quality bonds obligation, as designated by an internationally acknowledged rating

agency, and extrapolated as needed along the yield curve to correspond with the expected term of the defined
benefit obligation.

Uselul lives of property, plant and equipment

The management determines the estimated useful lives of properly, plant and equipment for caloulating
depreciation. This estimate is determined after considering expected usage of the assets or physical wear and
tear. Management reviews the residual value and useful lives annually and future depreciation charges are
adjusted where management believes the useful lives differ from previous estimates.

Leasa classification

Management exercises judgments in assessing whether the Jease is a finance lease or an operating lease. The
judgment as to which category applies to a specific lease depends on management's assessment of whether in
substance the risks and rewards of ownership of the asset have been ransferred to the lessee. In the inslances
where management estimates that the risks and rewards have been transferred, the lease is considered as
finance lease; otherwise it is accounted for as an operating lease.

The Company has entered into a lease arrangement with Rabigh Arabian Water and Elactricity Company
("RAWEC") for providing power, steam and water to the Company through an Independent Water, Steam and
Power Plant ("IWSPP"). The Company has determined that the significant risk and rewards of the asset undar
this arrangement ars retained by RAWEGC and not by the Company and, accordingly, the lease has been classified
as operafing lease by the Company.

Going concern

As at December 31, 2018, the Company’'s current liabilifies exceed the cutrent assets by Saudi Riyals 10,253
million, primarity due to the equity bridge foan amauniing to Saudi Riyals 8,887.5 million, falling due on July 1,
2019, backed by the founding shareholders’ guarantees.

The Company has assessed its ability to continue as a going concern and is not aware of any material
uncertaintles that may cast significant doubt and is satisfied that it has the resources to continue in business for
the foreseeable future. Therefore, the financial statements of the Gompany continue to be prepared on going
concern basis.

Provision for pre-novation withholding tax

The management datermines withholding tax on ceriain transactions with non-resident parties in the Kingdom of
Saudi Arabia as required under Saudi Arabian Income Tax Law. Due to the nature and complexity of the services
and fransactions involved as part of the novation of the contracts related to Phase il Expansion Project. the
assessment of withholding tax thereon involves estimates and judgments. Management, with the assistance of
its advisors, uses estimates and judgment based on the best available facts and circumstances and interpretations
and determines the amount of provision.

Impairment of non-financial assets

The Company assesses, at each reporting date or more fraquently if events or changes in circumstances indicate,
whether theré is an indication that an asset may be impaired. If any indication exists, of when annual impairment
testing for an asset is required, the Company estimates the asset's recoverable amount. An asset’s recoverable
amount is the higher of an asset's or cash-generating unit's (CGU) fair valus less cost o sell, and its value in use,
and is determined for the individual asset, unless the asset does not generate cash inflows which are largely
independent from other assets or groups. Whaere the carrying amount of an asset or CGU exceeds its recoverable
amount, the asset is considered impaired and is written down to its recoverable amount. In assessing value in
use, the estimated future cash flows are discounted to their present value using a pre-lax discousit rate that refiecis
current market assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific to the asset, In datermining the fair
value less costs to sell, an appropriate source is used, such as ohservable markst prices or, if no observable
market prices exisl, estimated prices for similar assets or if no estimated prices for similar assets exis!, itis based
on discounted future cash fiow calculations.

Summary of significant accounting policies

{a) Current versus non-current classification

The Company presents assets and liahilities in the statement of financial position based on current/non-current
clagsification. An asset is current when it is:

13




RABIGH REFINING AND PETROCHEMICAL COMPANY

{A Saudi Joint Stock Company)

Notes to the financial statements for the year ended December 31, 2018
(All amounts in thousands of Saudi Riyals unless otherwise stated}

Summary of significant accounting policies {continued}

- Expected to be realised or intended to sold or consumed in the noninal operating cycle;
- ltis hetd primarily for the purpose of trading;

- Expected to be realised within twelve months after the reporting period; or

- Cash or cash equivalsnt.

All other assets are classified as non-current.
A liability is current when:

- ltis expected to be seftied in the nomal operating cycle,

- Itis held primarily for the purpose of trading;

- ltis due to be settled within twelve months afier the reporting period; or

. There is no unconditional right to defer the setilement of the liability for af least twelve monihs afler the
reporting period.

The Company classifies all other liabiiilies as non-curent.
{b) Fair value measurement

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to fransfer a liability in an orderly transaction
between market participants at the measuremjent date. The fair value measurement is based on the presumption
that the transaction to sell the assat or transfer the liability takes place either:

- In the principal market for the asset or liahiiity, or
. Inthe absence of a principal market, in the most advantageous market for the asset or liability.

The fair value of an asset or a liability is measured using the assumptlions thal market participants would use
when pricing the asset or liability, assuming that market participants act in their acanomic best interest. A faly
value measurementl of a nen-financial asset takes into account a market participant's ability fo generate economic
henefits from the asset's highest and best use or by selling it to another market participant that would utilise the:
asset in its highest and best use.

The Company uses valuation techniques that are appropriate in the circumstances and for which sufficient data
are available o measure falr vaiue, maximising the use of relevant observable inputs and minimising the use of
unobsarvable inputs. All assets and liabilities for which fair value is measured or disclosed in the financial
statements are categorised within the fair valus hierarchy. This is described, as follows, based on the lowest level
input that is significant to the falr value measurement as a whole:

. Level1: Quoted (unadjusted) market prices in active markets for identical assets or Habilities.

. Level 2: Valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value measurement
is directly or indirectly observable.

. Level 3: Valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value measurement
is unobservable,

For assets and liabilities that are recognised in the financial statements at fair vaiue on a racurring basis, the
Company tetermines whether transfers have occurred between levels in the hierarchy by re-assessing
categorisation (based on the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value measurement as a whote) at the
end of each reporiing period. The Company determines the policies and procedures for both recurring fair value
measurement, and for non-recurring measurement.

{c} Revenue recognition

Contracts with customers

The Company has applied IFRS 15 using modified retrospective approach with effect from January 1, 2018.
Therefore, the comparative information has not been restated and continues io be reported under 1AS 18, impact

of changes on adoption of IFRS 15 is disclosed In Note 2.1 (a).

The Company recognises revenue from contracts with custorers based on a five-step model as set out in IFRS
15 and is given below:

Step 1 ~ Idenify the contraci(s) with a customer: A contract is defined as an agreement between two or more
parties that creates enforceable righs and obligations and sets out the criteria for every contract that must be
met;
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Summary of significant accounting policies {continued}

Step 2 — ldentify the performance obligations in the contract: A performance obligation is a promise in a contract
with a customer 1o transfer a good or service to the customer;

Step 3 - Determing the transaction price: The transaction price is the amount of consideration o which the
Company expects to be entitted in exchange for transferring promised goads or services ta a customer, excluding
amounts collected on behaif of third parties;

Step 4 — Allocate the transaction price to the performance obligations in the contract: For a contract that has more
than ane performance obligation, the Company allocates the transaction price to each performance obligation in
an amount that depicts the amouint of consideration to which the Company expects to be entitlied in exchange for
satisfying each performance obligation.

Step 5 — Recognize revenue when {or as) the entity salisfies a performance obligation.

The Company satisfies a performance obligation and recagnises revenue over time, if one of the following criteria
is met:

- The Company's performance does nol create an asset with an alternate use to the Company and the
Company has an enforceabls right to payment for performance completed to date;

- The Company's performance creales or enhances as asset that the custorner contrels as the asset is created
or enhanced;

- The customer simultaneously receives and consumes the benefits provided by the Company's perfarmance
as the Company performs.

For performance obligations where none of the above conditions are met, revenue is recognised ai the point in
time at which the performance obligation is satisfied.

Revenue in respect of sale of refined and pefrochemical products and port services Is recagnised over the period
as per the related offtake and other agreements with the customers. Transfer of refined and petrochermicai
products to customers is considered as series of distinct goods and the Company uses output method to measure
the progress towards complete satisfaction or performance obfigation. The Company has further used IFRS 15
practical expedient of right to invoice, and revenue is booked on monthly basis in respect of goods anhd services
for which the Company has a right to Invoice as per the related agreements.

Variable consideration is estimated based on expected value method. Revenue is recorded net of trade discounts,
volume rebates and deductibles. Consideration payable to a customer is recognised as a reduction of the
transaction price unless the payment to the customer is in exchange for a distinct good or service that the customer
transfers to the Cotmpany. if consideration payable to the customer is a payment for a distinct goed or service
from the customer, then the Company Tecards such purchase of the good or service in the same way that it
accounts for other purchases from suppliers.

In the comparative period, revenue was recognised when significant risks and rewards of ownership had been

transferred fo the customer upon delivery or shipment of products and in accordance with the related offtake and

other arrangements with the Company’s customers.

Revenue from port services is recugnised when services were rendered.

Dividends

Dividends are recognised when:

- The Company's tight to receive the payment is established, which is generally when shareholders approve
the dividend;

- ltis probable that the economic benefits associated with the dividend will flow to the entity; and

- The amount of the dividend can be measured reliably.

interest income

Interest Income is calculated using the effeclive interest (profit) rate method. The effective interest rate is the

interest rate that exactly discounts the estimated stream of future cash payment or receipts over the expected life
of the financial instrument or when appropriaie over the shorter period.
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Summary of significant accounting policles {continued)
{d) Foreign currencies

The Company's financial statements are presented in Saudi Riyals which Is also the functional currency of the
Company. Transactions in foreign currencies are initially translated by the Company into Saudi Riyals using the
exchange rate at the date of the transaction it first qualifies for recognition.

Monetlary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are retranslated in the functional currency using
the exchange rate ruling at the reporting date. Diffarences arising on settlement ar translation of monetary items
are recognized in the statement of profit or loss.

Non-monetary items that are measured in terms of historical cost in a foreign currency are translated using the
exchange rates as at the dates of the initial fransactions. Non-monetary items measured at fair value in a foreign
currency are transtated using the exchange rates at the date when the fair value is determined. The gain or loss
arising on translation of non-monetary assels measured at fair value is treated in line with the recognition of gain
or loss on change in fair value in the item (i.e., the translation differences on Hems whose falr valua gain or loss
is recognized in statement of comprehensive income or statement of profit or loss are also recognized in statement
of comprehensive income or statement profit ot loss, respectively).

{e) Property, plant and equipment

Praperty, plant and equipment are stated at cost, iess accurnulated depreclation and impairment loss, if any,
excepl for capital projects-in-prograss, which are stated at cost less impairment loss, if any. Cost includes
expenditure thal Is directly atiributable to the acquisition or construction of each asset. Finance costs on
borrowings to finance the construction of the assats are capltalized during the period of time that is required to
complete and prepare the asset for its intended use.

Subsequent expenditure is capitalized only when it increases the future economic benefits embodied in the item
of property, plant and equlpment. All other expenditures are recognized in the statement of profit of loss when
incurred. Spare parts that are considered essential to ensure continuous plant operation whose useful lives are
more than one year are capitalized and classified as plant, machinery and operating equipment.

When significant parts of property, plant and equipment are reguired fo be replaced st intervals, the Gompany
recognizes such parts as individual assets with specific useful lives and depreciates them accordingly.
Expenditures incurred on testing and inspections, which are caried nomally every 4 years, are capitalized as
part of the respective items of property, plant and equipment and amortized aver the period of four years. Al other
repair and maintenance costs are recognized in the statement of profit or loss as incurred.

Pre-commissioning income Is recognised net of related incidental costs and is included in capital projects-in-
progress.

Depreciation is calculated on a straight-line basis to write off the cost of property, plant and equipment over {heir
estimated useful lives which are as follows:
Number of years

Buildings and infrastructure 8-25
Plant, machinery and operating equipment 2-23
Vehicle and related equipment 3-6
Furniture and IT equipment 3-14

An item of property, plant and equipment is derecognized upon disposal or when no future economic benefits are
expected from its use, Any gain o loss arising on derecognition of the asset {calculated as the differsnce between
the net disposal proceeds and the catrying amount of the asset) is included in the statement of profit or logs when
the asset is derecognized.

{f Leases

The determination of whether an arrangement is or contains a lease is based on the substance of the arrangement
at the incaption of the lease. The amangement is, or contains, a leass if fulfilment of the arrangement is dependent
on the use of a specific asset or assets and the arrangement conveys a right {o use the asset or assels, even if
that right is not explicitly specified in an arrangement.

A leass is classified at the inceplion date as a finance lease 01 an aperating lease.
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Finarice lpase

Finance leases that transfer to the Company substantially all of the risks and benefits incidental o ownership of
the leased item, are capitalized at the commencement of the fease at the inception date at the fair value of the
lsased property or, If lower, at the present value of the minimum {ease payments. Lease payments are apportioned
between finance charges and reduction of the lease liability so as to achieve a constant rate of interest on the
remalning balance of the lability. Finance charges are recognized as finance costs in the statement of profit or
loss.

A leased asset Is depreciated over the useful life of the asset. However, if there is no reasonable certainty that
the Company will obtain ownership by the end of the lease term, the asset is depreciated over the shorter of the
estimated useful life of the asset and the lease term. Currently, depreciation is calcutated on a siraight-line basts
over the estimated useful lives of the assets as follows:

Number of years
Community facifities 25
Maring terminal facilities 30
Desalination ptant 17

Operating lease

An operating lease Is a lease other than a finance lease, Operating lease payments are recognized as an
operating expense in the statement of profit or loss on & straight-line basis over the lease lerm.

(g} Intangible assets

Intangible assets, having no physical existence however separately identifiable and providing fulure economic
benefits, are iniially recognized at purchase price and directly altribiiable costs. Intangible assets are stated at
cost less accumulated amortization and impairment loss, if any.

Software and licenses

Software and licenses procured for various business use and having finite useful lives are presented as intangible
assets. Software and licenses are amortized on a straight-line basis over their estimated useful lives of & years
and 12-22 years, respeciively.

Amortization methods and useful lives are reviewed at each financial year end and adjusted if appropriate.

Gains or losses arising from derecognition of an intangible asset are measured as the difference between the net
disposal proceeds and the carrying amotint of the assel and are recognised in the statement of profit or loss when
the asset is derecognised.

{h) Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs atiributable to the acquisition, construction or production of a qualifying asset that necessarily
takes a substantial period of time to get ready for its infended use or sale are capitalised as part of the cosf of the
respective asset. All olher borrowing costs are expensed in the period in which they oceur, Borrowing costs consist
of interest and other costs that the Company incurs in connection with the borrowing of funds,

() Financial instruments

The Company applied the following classification and measurement requirements for financial instruments.
Recognition and derecognition of finariclal instruments

A financial asset or financial liability is recognised when the Company becomes a party {o the contractual
provisians of the instrument, which is generally on trade date. The Company derecognizes a financial asset when
the confractual cash flows from the asset expire or It transfers its rights to receive contractual cash fiows on the
financial asset in a transaction in which substantiafly ali the risks and rewards of ownership are transferred. Any

interest In transferred financial assets that is created or retained by the Company is recognised as a separate
asset or liability.
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A financial liability is derecognized from the statement of fnancial position when the Company has discharged ita
obligation or the contract is cancelled or expires.

Classification of financial instruments

The Company classified its financial assets Into the following measurement categories:
(i) Those to be measured subsequently at amortised cost; or

(if) Fair vatue through profit or foss.

The classification depends on the Company’s business model for managing financial assets and the contractual
terms of the financial assets cash flows.

The Company classifies its financial liabilities as those measured at amortized cost.
Measurement

Financial instruments at fair value through profit or loss are recognised initially at fair vatue with fransaction costs
recagnised in the statement of profit or loss as incumed, Alt ather financial instruments are recognised initially at
fair value plus directly attributable transactien costs. The Company initially measures the trade receivable at the
transacfion price as the trade receivable do not contain a significant financing component,

Financial instruments measured at amortized cos!

A Financial asset Is measured at amotized cost i it is held within a business model whose objective is to hold
assels I order to collect contractual cash flows and the contractual terms represent contractual cash flows that
are solely payments of principal and interest.

The Company dlassifies its financiat liabilites as those measured at amortized cost.
Financial insiruments measured af fair value through profit or loss

Financial assets measured at fair value through profit or loss comprise items specifically designated as fair value
through profit or loss on initial recognition and financial assets held within a busingss model whose objective isto
hold assets in order fo collect contractual cash flows and the contractual terms represent contractual cash flows
that are not solely payments of principat and interest. Where a financial liabifity is designated at fair value through
profit or loss, the movement in fair value atfributable to changes in the Company's own credit qualily is caloulated
by determining {he changes in credit spreads above observable market interest rates and is presented separately
in other comprahensive income.

Upon initial recognition, financial instruments may be designated as fair value fhrough profit or loss. Resirictions
are placed on the use of the designated fair value option and the classification can only be used:

- Inrespact of an enlire contract if a host contract contains one or more embedded derivatives;
- If designating the financial insfruments eliminates or significantly reduces measurement or recognition
inconsistencies {L.e. eliminates an accounting mismateh) that would otherwise arise from measuring financial

assets or liabilities an a different basis,

. Iffinanclal assets and liabilities are both managed and their performance evalualed on a fair value basis in
accordance with a documented risk management or investment strategy.

On initial recognition, for a financial asset the fair value option is only applied if it efiminates an accounting
mismatch that would otherwise arise from measuring items on a different basis. The above fair value option criteria
remains unchanged for a financial Habitity.

Offsetting

Financial assets and liabilities are offset and the net amount is presented in the statement of financial position
when the Company has a legal right to offset the amounts and intends to settie an a net basis or lo realize the
asset and settle the liability simullaneously.
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Summary of significant accounting policies (continued)
{4} impairment
Financial assels

Al each reporting date, the Company applies a three-stage approach to measuring expected credit losses (ECL)
on financial assets accounted for at amortized cost. Assets migrate through the following three stages based on
the change in credit quality since initial recognition:

(i} Stage 1: 12-monihs ECL

For exposures where there has not besn a significant increase in credit risk since initial recognition and that are
not credit impaired upon origination, the portion of the Iifetime ECL. associated with the probability of default events
ocourring within the next 12 months is recognized.

(i) Stage 2: Lifetime ECL — nof credil impaired

For credil exposures where there has been a significant increase in credit risk since Initial recognition but that are
not credit impaired, a lifetime ECL. is recognized.

(i) Stage 3: Lifetime ECL ~ credit impaired

Financial assels are assessed as oredit Impaired when one or more avents that have a detrimental impact on the
estimated future cash flows of that asset have occurred. For financial assots that have become credif impaired, a
bfetime ECL is recognized and interest revenue is calculated by applying the effective inferestrate to the amortized
cost (net of provision) rather than the gross carrying amount.

Objective evidence that financial assets are impalred can include significant financial difficulty af the bomower,
default or delinguency by 2 borrower, restructuring of a loan or advance by the entity on terms that the entity
would not otherwise consider, indications that a borrower ar issuer will enter bankruptcy, the disappearance of an
active market for a securily, or other abservable data relating to a Company such as adverse changes in the
payment status of borrowers or issuers in the Company, or economic conditions that correlate with defaults in the
Company.

The Company considers the probability of default upon initial recognition of asset and whether there has been a
significant increase in credit risk on an ongoing basis throughout each reporting period. To assess whether there
is a significant increase in credit risk, the Company compares the risk of a default occurring on the assef as at the
reporting date with the risk of default as at the date of initial recognition. It considers avallable reasonable and
supportive forward-looking information,

The Company considers evidence of impalrment at both a specific asset and collective level, All individually
significant financial instruments found not to be specifically impaired are then collectively assessed for any
impairment that has been incurred but not yet identified.

impairment losses for a financial insirument are recagnised in the statement of profit or loss and reflected in
impatrment for credit losses, When a subsequent event causes the amount of impairment foss to decrease, the
decrease In impairment loss is reversed through the statement of profit or [oss.

When an asset is uncollectible, It is written off against the related provision. Such assets are wrilten off afler all
the necessary procedures have been completed and the amount of the loss has been determined. Subsequent
recovaries of amounts previausly written off reduce the amount of the expense in the statement of profit or loss.
If, in a subseguent period, the amount of the impairment loss decreases and the decrease can be related
objectively to an event ocourring after the irmpairment was recognised, the previously recagnised impairment loss
is reversed by adjusting the provisien. The amount of the revaersal is recognised in the statement of profit of loss.

The Company has adopted the simplified approach as aflowed by IFRS 9 and measures the loss alfowance at an
amount equal to lifetime expected credit losses for all trade receivables.
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Non-financial assefs

The Company assesses, at each reporting date, whether there is an indication that an asset may be impaired. If
any indication exists, or when annual impairment testing for an asset is required, the Campany estimates the
asset's recoverable amount. An asset’s recoverable amount is the higher of an asset’s or CGU's fair valus less
costs of disposal and its value in use. The recoverable amount is determinad for an individual asset, unless the
asset does not generate cash inflows that are largely independent of those from other assets or group of assets.
When the carrying amount of an asset or CGU exceeds Its recoverable amount, the asset is considered impaired
and Is written down to its recoverable amount.

Externat valuars are involved for valuation of significant assels. The involvement of exlernal valuers is decided by
the Company after discussion with the Company's Audit Committee. Selection criteria include market knowledge,
reputation, independence and whether professional standards are maintained. The Company decides, after
discussions with the external valuers, which valuation techniques and inputs to use far each case.

At each reporting date, the Company analyses the movements in the values of assels and liabilities which are
required to be remeasured or re-assessed as per the Company's policies. For this analysis, the Cornpany verifies
the major inputs applied in the latest valuation by agreeing the information in the valuation computation to
contracis and other relevant docwnents. The Company also compares the change in the fair value of each asset
and liability with relevant external sources to determine whether the change is reasonable.

In assessing value in use, the estimated future cash flows are discounted fo their present value using a discount
rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific lo the assel. In
determining fair value less costs of disposal, recent market transactions are taken into account. If no such
transactions can be identified, an appropriate valuation model is used. These calculations are corroborated by
valuation multiples, quated share prices for publicly traded companies or other available fair value indicators.

The Company bases its impairment calculation on detailed budgets and forecast calculations.

impairment losses are recognized in the statemert of profit or loss. An assessment is made at each reporting
date o determine whether there is an indication that previously recognized impairment losses no longer exist or
have decreased. If such indicalion exists, the Company estimates the asset's or CGU's recoverable amount. A
previously recognized Impairment loss is raversed only if there has been a change in the assumptions used fo
determine the asset's recoverable amount since the last impairment loss was recognized. The reversal is limited
so that the carrying amount of the asset does not exceed its recoverable amount, nor exceed the carrying amount
that would have been determined, net of depreciation, had no Impairment foss been recognized for the assel in
prior years. Such reversal is recognized in the statement of profit or loss unless the assel is carried at a revalued
amount, in which case, the reversal is treated as a revaluation increase.

{k) Trade receivables

Trade recaivables are amounts dua from customers for sale of goods in the ordinary course of business. Trade
receivables are recognized initially at fair value and subsequently carried at amortized cost using effective interest
rate method, less provision for impalrment, if any. Subsequent recoveries of amounlts previously written-off are
credited to profit or loss against general and administrative expenses.

{i} Inventories

inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable vafue. The cost is determined using the weighted
average basis and Includes all cost incurred In the normal course of husiness in bringing each product to is
presant condition and location, In the case of work in progress and finished gouds, costinclude the purchase cost,
the cost of refining and processing including an appropriale proportion of depreciation and production overheads
pased on normal aperating capacity.

The net realisable value of inventories is based on the estimated selling price in the ordinary course of business
lass the estimated costs of completion and the estimated costs necessary to make the sale.

{rm) Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash eguivalents comprise cash on hand, cash with banks and other short-term highly liquid
investments, If any, with original maturities of three months or less from the purchase date,
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{r) Time deposits

Time deposits, with orginal maturity of more than three months but not more than one year from the purchase
date, are initialty recognized in the statement of financial position at fair value and are subsecuently measured at
amortized cost using the effective yield method, less any impairment in value.

(0) Zakat and income tax

Zakat and income tax are provided for in accordance with the Saud! Arabian fiscal regulations, Zakat and income
taxes are charged fo the statement of profit or loss. Additional amounts payabie, if any, at the finalization of final
assessments are accounted for when such amounts are determined. The Zakat and income fax pald by the
Company are reimbursed by the respective shareholders except for general public shareholders and are
accordingly adjusted in their respective equity accounts.

Deferrad tax is calculated using the liability method on temporary differences between the tax bases of assels
and liabilities and their carrying amounts for financial reporting purposes at the reporting date,

Deferred tax liabilities are recognized for all taxable temporary differences, except when the deferred tax liability
arises from the inifiat recognition of goodwill or an assel or liability in a transaction that is not a business
combination and at the lime of the transaction, affects neither the accounting profit nar taxable profit ar loss.

Deferred tax assets are recognized for all deductible temporary differences, ihe carry forward of unused tax credits
and unused tax losses fo the extent that it is probable that taxable profil wili be avsilable against which the
deductible temporary differences can be ulilized,

Deferred tax retating to items recognised outside statement of profit or loss is recognised slther in statement of
comprehensive income or directly in equity.

The camying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at each reporiing date and reduced to the extenl that itis
no longer probable that sufficient taxable profit will be available to aliow alt or part of the deferred tax assst to be
utilised. Unrecognised deferred tax assets are reassessed at each reporting date and are recognised to the extent
that it has become probable that future taxable profits will allow the deferred tax asset to be recovered,

The Company withholds taxes on certain fransactions with non-resident parties In the Kingdom of Saudi Arabia
as reguired under Szudi Arabian Income Tax {aw.

{p} Employees’ benefits

End of service henefits

The Company operates an unfunded post-employment defined benefit plan. The cost of providing benefits under
the defined benefit plan is determined using the projected unit credit method. Actuarial gains and losses are
recognized In full in the periad In which they accur in statement of comprehensive Income. Such actuarial gains
and losses are also immediately recognized in retained earnings. Re-measurements are not reclassified to
statement of profit or loss in subsequent periods.

Pasl sarvice costs are racognized In statement of profit or loss on the earlier of:

- the date of the plan amendment or curtailment; and
- ihe date on which the Company recognizes related restructuring costs.

Net interest is calcutiated by applying the discount rate 1o the net defined benefit lisbility. The Company recognizes

the following changes in the net defined benefit obligation under cost of sales and general and administrative

expenses in the statement of profit or loss:

- Service costs comprising current service costs, past-service costs, gains and fosses on curtailments and non-
routine settlements, and

- Netinterest expense or income.

The defined benefit liability comprises the present value of the defined benefit obligation, tess past service cosls.
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Summary of significant accounting policies {continued)
Employee savings program

The Company operates a thrift savings program {the "program”) on behalf of its employees and the Gompany
matches the emplovee confribution with an equal, or lesser, contribution towards the program that Is
commensurale with the employee's particlpation seniority in the program. Participation in the program by the
regular employees who have completed their probationary period is opticnal and employee may choose the option
to invest or not to invest in the program. The contributions from the Company are recognized as employee
expenses and are charged to the statement of profit or loss. The Company has arranged with the local bank,
being the custodian bank, to manage the program on behalf of the Company in accordance with Islamic Shari'ah
Law.

Employee Share Ownership Plan (ESOFP)

The employee service cost of share options granted o employees under the Employee Share Ownership Plan
(ESOP) is measured by reference to the fair value of the Company's shares on the date on which the options are
granied. This costis recognized as an employee expense, over the period in which the performance and/for service
conditions are fulfilled, ending on the date on which the relevant employees become fully entitied to the award
('the vesting date’}. The cumulative expense recognized for equity-seftled transactions at each reporting date until
the vesting date reflects the extant to which the vesting period has expired and the Company's best estimale of
the number of shares that will ultimately vest, The charge in the statement of profit or loss for a period represents
the movement in cumulative expense recognized as at the beginning and end of that period.

Shares purchased are kept with a bank acting as trustee for the ESOP and are carried at cost as a deduction
from shareholders’ equity unti the options vest and the underlying shares are transferred to the employee. On
the vesting date of an individual option, the difference between the employee service cost and the purchase cost
of the shares is taken diractly t¢ retained eamings as an equity adjustment.

{q) Segment reporting

Operating segment

An operating segment is group of assets and operations:
(Y engaged in revenue producing activities;

{il} results of its operations are continuously analyzed by management in order to make decisions related to
resource allocation and performance assessment; and

(it} financial information is separately available,

(r) Provisions

Provisions are recognized when the Company has a present obligation {legal or constructive) as a result of a past
event, it is probable that an outflow of resources embodying econemic benefils will be required to settle the
obligation and a reliable estimate can be made of the amount of the obligation. Where the Company expeacts
some or all of a provision to be reimbursed, the reimbursement is recognized as a separate asset when the
reimbursement is virtually certain. The expense relating to a provision is presented in the statement of profit or
loss net of any reimbursement.

Agreements with founding shareholders

The Founding shareholders of the Company are Saudi Arabian Oil Company (‘Saudi Arameo”) and Sumitomo
Chemical Company Limited (*Sumitomeo Chemical”), with each having 37.5% equity interest in the share capital
of the Gompany. The Company has enterad into various agresments with Founding Shareholders inciuding,
among others:

4.1 Crude oil feedstock supply agreement

On January 28, 2006, the Company entered into a Crude Qil Feedstock Supply Agreement (COSA) with Saudi
Aramea for the supply to the Company of its crude oil feadstock requirements, up to a maximum supply of 400,000
bpd, solely for use in the integrated refining and petrochemical complex. The price at which Saudi Aramco sells
the crude oil feedstock ta the Company is based, amongst other variable market factors, on the intemational crude
oil prices. The COSA is valid for 30 years commencing from October 1, 2608,
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Agreements with founding shareholders {continued)

4.2 Refined products lifting and marketing agreement

On March 11, 2008, the Company signed a Refined Praducts Lifting & Marketing Agreement {RPLMA) with Baudi
Aramco as sole “Marketer” of refined products from the Rabigh Refinery. The RPLMA is valid for 10 years from
Ociober 1, 2008, and is further extendable for another 5 years. Pursuant fo this agreement, Saudi Aramco will lift
and market globally, as "Marketer”, the refined products from the integrated refining and petrochemical complex.
The Company and Saudi Aramco are In the process of renewing the agreement.

4.3 Petrochemical products lifting and marketing agreement

On March 11, 2006 as amended on April 1, 2014, the Company signed Petrochemical Products Lifting & Marketing
Agreement (PPLMA) with founding shareholders as “Marketers” of petrochemical products from the integrated
refining and petrochemical complex. The PELMA is valid for 10 years from accumulated production date, and is
further extendable for another 5 years. Pursuant to this agreement, Marketers will Iit and market globally, as
“Marketer”, the petrochemical products from the integrated refining and petrochemical complex, An Assignment
and Assumption Agreement dated February 23, 2009 assigns Sumitomo Chemical Asia PTE Limited as the
“Marketer” on behalf of Sumilomo Chemical Company Limited.

4.4 Credit facility agreement

On March 18, 2006, the Company entered into a Credit Faclity Agreement (GFA) with both of its Founding
Shareholders. Under the provisions of this agreement, the Founding Shareholders agreed to grant to the
Company a loan facility up 1o a maximum aggregate amount of Saudi Riyals 6,206 million for the development,
design and construction of the integrated refining and pefrochemical complex.

4.5 Land lease agreement

The Company has entered into an Amended and Restated Land Lease agraement with Saudi Aramco effective
March 18, 2015 for the lease of approximately 20 million square meters for a period of 99 years, with effect from
November 1, 2005, and may be renewed thereafter for consecutive additional periods as agreed. The Company
shall pay to Saudi Aramco rent in an amount equal to Saudi Riyals 1 per square meter per annum. Also see Note
13.2,

4.6 Terminal lease agreement

The Company entered into a Terminal Lease Agreement with Saudi Aramco on March 2, 2006 in respect of the
existing Rabigh Marine Terminal, Under this agreement, the Company has been granted exclusive rights by Saudi
Aramco fo use and operate the Rabigh Terminal Facilities and the Rabigh Terminal Site for & term of 30 years
effective from October 1, 2008, Also see Notes 13.1 and 13.2.

4.7 Rabigh community agreement

The Company has entered into Rabigh community agreement with Saudi Aramco, effective October 1, 2014 for
a term of 25 years, in respect of leases of tand and infrastructure facilities at yearly lease rentals of Sgudi Riyals
16.5 millien and Saudi Riyals 18.2 million, respectively. Also see Notes 13.1 and 13.2.

4.8 Secondment agreements

The Company has entered into Secondment Agresments with each of its Founding Shareholders; with Saudi
Aramco dated June 12, 2008, and with Sumitomo Chemical dated July 1, 2006. Each of these agreements has a
continuous term to apply untit the date on which a Founding shareholder ceases to be a sharehoider of the
Company. These agreements cover the requirement of the Company from time to time for the secondment of
certain personnel to assist in the conduct of business and operations.

4.8 Services agreements

The Company has entered into services agreements with founding shareholders and their affiliates covering
variots operational and loglstics support services. These agresments cover the provision of various support
services 1o and by the Company such as human resources, training and recruitment, legal, utilities, information
technotogy, General Management, Technical Support and Pre-marketing Support. These agreements also cover
the ongoing fechnical support needed for continuous operations and ongoing enhancements such as refining and
petrochemical process know-how provided by Saudi Arameo and Sumitomo Chemical respectively and marketing
{echnical services, engineering and safety best practices and training provided by both founding shareholders.
The Company shall pay for these services at mutually agreed prices specified in each agreement for the services
to be provided.
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ear ended December 31, 2018

Segment information

5.1 Operating segment

The Company operates an integrated re
reporting is based on operating segments
gtructure. The Management Committee (
monitors the operating resulls of its operating segmen
allocation and performance assessment. The Company's segmen
Company's operating segments comprise of refined products and petrochemical

year ended December 31, is summarized below:

2018

Sales - external cusiomers
Depreciation and amortization
Operating {loss} / profit

2017

Sales — external custorners
Depreciation and amortization
Operating profit

2018

Total assels
Total liabilities
Capital expenditure

2017

Tolal assels
Total lighilities
Capital expenditure

The Company's revenue from external cus
Riyals 33,213 milllon) of revenue generate

31, 2017: 3 customers).

finary and petrochemical complex. The primary format for segment
and ie determined on the basis of management's internal reporting
coltectively considered to be the Chief Operating Decision Maker)
ts for the purpose of making decisions about resource
t profit measure is operating profit (toss). The
Is. Information as of and for the

Refined products  Petrochemicals Total

31,447,298 9,550,893 40,998,191

754,260 1,678,835 2,433,085

(904,240} 1,920,247 1,016,007

Refined products Petrochemicals Total

26,237,144 7,973,866 34,211,010

756,716 1,684,303 2,441,019

175,272 1,528,546 1,703,818

Refined products __ Petrochemicals Unallocated Total

22,552,249 37,705,403 3,836,315 64,093,867

13,059,778 40,218,677 273,492 53,551,947

323,631 2,752,404 - 3,076,035
Refined products Petrochemicals Unallocated Total
21,387,814 36,979,692 3,307,471 61,674,877
12,025,780 39,265,350 308,040 51,588,170
170,132 2,700,455 - 2,870,687

Geographical information for the year ended December 31, is as folows:

2018
Sales
Refined products
Petraochemicals
Total

2017
Sales
Refined products
Petrochemicals
Totat

Middle East market, primarily inciudes Kingdom of S

and China.

tomers involve Saudi Riyals 39,920 million (December 31, 2017: Saudi
d from 3 customers in (he year ended December 31, 2018 (December

Middie East Asia Pacific Others Total
31,447,298 - " 31,447,298
2,946,866 6,284,635 310,392 9,550,893
34,384,164 6,284,635 319,302 40,998,191
Middle East Asia Pacific Others Total
26,237,144 - - 26,237,144
3,482,105 4,418,641 73,120 7,973,866
20,719,249 4,418,641 73,120 34,211,010
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5 Segment information {continued)
5.2 Adjustments
Finance cost, financial income, Zakat and income tax including defarred tax, cash and cash equivalents, time
deposits and certain assets and labililies are not afiocated to operating segments as they are managed on a

Company basis.

Gapital expenditure consists of additions to property, plant and equipmen! and intangible assets.

5.3 Reconciliation of profit
2018 2017
Operating profit 1,016,007 1,703,818
Finance cost {465,765) {445,974)
Financial income 302,832 257,797
Profit before Zakat and income tax . 853,074 1,515,641
Zakat (44,141) (29,687)
Income tax (140,373} (82,977)
Net profit after Zakat and income tax 668,560 1,422,877
6 Gost of sales
Notes 2018 2017
Raw materials, crude oil and spare parts consumed 24,461,554 27,802,370
Depreciation 12,13 2,321,577 2,321,622
Utilities consumed 971,652 1,070,848
Personne! costs 640,114 603,806
Repair and maintenance 310,287 331,971
Contracted services 73,311 60,859
Amoriization 14 11,360 11,360
Insurance 36,800 32,802
Provision for stow moving spare parts and consumables 18 22,491 10,078
Lease rentals 16,721 19,418
Other overheads 24,797 23,178
38,890,764 32,288,413
Changes in inventories of finished goods, raw materials
and spare parts and consumables used (207,514} (773427
38,683,150 31,514,986
7 Selling and marketing expenses
2018 2017
Freight charges 75,532 69,342
Deductibles {see befow) 360,379 -
Others 3,663 4,440
439,574 73,782

Deductibles mainly comprise of freight and handling charges, insurance and customs and storage charges for
inventories.
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8 General and adminisirative expenses
Notes 2018 2017
Parsonnel costs 611,260 649,051
Depreciation 12,13 68,284 106,241
Repair ang maintenance 71,4596 56,990
Bad debts 73 46
iT, nstworking and data communication 65,696 53,218
Amortization 14 1,874 1,796
Travelling 19,302 17,722
Rent 15,736 11,637
Professionat foes 7,750 15,689
insurance 3,962 5,025
Stationery, telex and telephone 5,308 4,846
Others _ 47,303 . 47,628
948,044 969,289
9 Other Income, net
2018 2017
Port services 49,861 46,827
Gain on sake of scrap sales 32,501 15,308
Miscellanecus income 30,766 1,043
Loss on disposal of property and equipment (21,769} (1,267)
Other expense {2,775) {11,046)
88,584 50,865
10 Finance cost
2018 2017
Interest on loans and borrowings 425870 302,776
Interest on finance leases 29,672 30,662
Others . 10,223 22,536
465,765 445974

11 Earnings per share
Rasle eamings per share (EPS) is caloulated by dividing the profit for the year by the weighted average number of
ardinary shares outstanding during the year.
Diluted EPS is calculated by dividing the nst profit by the weighted average number of ordinary shares outsianding
during the year plus the weighled average number of ordinary shares that would be issued on conversion of all the
dilutive potential ordinary shares into ordinary shares.

2018 2047
Net profit for the year for basic and dilutive eamings per share 668,560 1,422,977
Weighted average number of shares outstanding during the year
{thousands) 876,000 876,000
Adjustment for the effect of dilution in weighted average number of
shares outstanding during the year due to ESOP (thousands) 295 336
Basic and diluted eamings per share (Saudi Riyals) 0.76 1.62
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RABIGH REFINING AND PETROGHEMIGAL COMPANY

(A Saudi Jaint Stock Company)

Notes to the financial statements for the year ended December 31, 2018
{All amounts in Saudi Riyals thousands unless otherwise stated)

Property, plant and equipment {continued)

121 Depreciation for the year has been allocated as foliows:

Notes 2018 2017

Cost of sales 8 2,315,340 2,315,385
General and adminisirative expenses 8 . 80,935 84,856

2,306,275 2,400,041

122  The Company has leased land for the refining and petrochemical faciliies from Saudi Arabian Oil
Company for a period of 99 years. Also see Nole 4.5,

12.3 Capital projects-in-progress
The capital projects-in-progress at December 31, 2018 malnly represents cost relating to the acquisition and

ongoing constriction of Phase it Expansion Project {also see Note 1). As part of Phase il Expansion Project,
identifiable assets acquired and liabilities assumad by the Company as of the date pf novation were as follows:

Cost of work executed 12,451,311
Intangible assels 118,798
Advances to suppliers 161,608
Retentions (533,070)
Trade and other payables {8,832,288)
Accrued liabilities (3,378,016)

The Company has secured various financing facilities amounting to Saudi Riyals 30,630 miilion from various
commercial banks and financial institutions In order to finance the Phase |l Expansion Project {also see Note 15).
The Company had also acquired adminisirafive expenses amounting to Saudi Riyals 21,757 thousands from
founding shareholders.

124  Capitalization of borrowing costs

During the year ended December 31, 2018, the Company has capitalized borrowing cosls amounting to Saudi
Riyals 927.3 million (2017: Saudi Riyals 856 miflion) in capital projects-in-progress relating to the construction of
the Phase H Expansion Project,

12.5 Pre-commissioning income

During the year ended December 31, 2018, pre-commissioning income related to Phass Il Expansion Project
amounting to Saudi Riyats 961.6 million (2017: Saudi Riyals 776.9 mitlion) is included in Capilal projects-in-
progress.

Leases

134 Finance leases

13.41 Lease assets acquired under finance lease, at December 31, are detailed as under:

Community Marine terminal Desalination

facilities facilities plant Total
Cost
December 31, 2018, 2017 and
January 1, 2017 225,715 288,820 106,015 620,550
Accumulated depreciation
January 1, 2017 ) 20,315 103,597 51,456 175,368
Charge for tha year 9,028 12,557 6,236 27,822
December 31, 2017 20,344 116,154 57,692 203,190
Charge for the year 9,02¢ 8,321 6,236 23,5806
Decamber 31, 2018 38,373 124,475 63,828 226,776
Carrying value
At December 31, 2013 187,342 164,345 42,087 383,774
At December 31, 2017 196,371 172,666 48,323 417,360
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RABIGH REEINING AND PETROCHEMICAL COMPANY
(A Saudi Joint Stock Company)

Notes to fhe financial statements for the year ended December 31, 2018

{All amounts in Saudi Riyals thousands unless otherwise stated)

Leases (continued)

13.1.2 Finance lease obligations at December 31 are as follows:

2018 2017
Future Present value Present value
minimum lease of minimum of minimum
payments interest lease payments lease payments
Community facilities 363,268 171,475 191,793 196,145
Marine terminal facilities 377,679 140,768 236,911 243,373
Desalination plant 65,569 11,157 54,412 60,848
806,516 323,400 483,116 500,366

At December 31, the finance lease obligations are presented in the statement of financial position as follows:

Current portion
Non-current portion

2018 2017
19,540 18,413
483,576 481,953
483,116 500,366

13.1.2  The fulure minimum lease payments together with the present vaiue of minimum lease payments as of

December 31 are as foliows:

2018 2017

Present Present

vajue of value of

Minimum minimum Minimum minimum

jease lease lease lease

paymenis payments payments payments
Within one year 46,997 19,540 45,997 18,413
Two to five years : 188,016 83,739 188,016 78,964
More than five years 571,503 379,837 618,500 402,989
Total minimurm lease payments 806,516 483,116 853,513 500,368
Less: finance charges (323,400) - (353,147) -
Present value of minimum lease payments 483,116 483,116 500,366 500,366

13.1.4  Community facilities were acquired under a finance lease agreement from Saudi Aramco over a period
of 25 years (Also see Note 4.7). The undiscounted minimum lease payments are Saudi Riyals 363.3

million {2017: Saudi Riyals 381.4 million).

13.1.5 Marine terminal facilities were acquired under a finance lease agreement from Saudi Aramco over a
periad of 30 years (Also see Note 4.6). The undiscounted minimum lease payments are Saudi Riyals

377.7 million (2017: Saudi Riyals 396.8 million).

13.4.6 OnOciober 1 2008, the Company has taken over the interest and obligations of Saudi Aramco in respect
of the Desalination ptant for the Refinery Gomplex, with a remaining term of 17 years. The aggregate
present value of this leased asset was estimated fo be Saudi Riyals 106 million which has also been
capitalized as leased assets cost. The undiscounted minimum fease payments are Saudi Riyals 65.6

million {2017 Saudi Riyals 75.3 million}.

13.1.7 Depreciation for the year has been allocated as follows:

Notes

Cost of sales
General and adminisirative expenses

29

2018 2017
6,237 6,237
17,349 21,585
23,586 27,822
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RABIGH REFINING AND PETROGHEMICAL COMPANY

{A Saudi Joint Stock Company)

Notes to the financial statements for the year ended December 31, 2018
(Al amounts In Saudi Riyals thousands unless otherwise stated)

Leases {continued)
13.2 Operating leases

43,21 The Company has entered into operating ieases for land, water and energy conversion plant and site
facilities, with options to renew the leases on expiry of relevant lease periods. Operating lease rental
charged to the statement of profit or loss for the year ended December 31, 2018 amounts to Saudi Riyals
748.1 million {2017; Saudi Riyals 548.9 million).

1322 Commiiments for minimum lease payments in relation to non-canceliable operating leases as at
December 31 are as follows!

2018 2017
Within one year 928,039 543,088
Two to five years 3,644,906 2,108,106
More than five years 13,190,022 6,962,499
17,763,867 9,614,593
Intangible assets
Softwares Licenses Other Total
Cost
January 1, 2017 231,154 209,114 5,154 445,422
Additions 1,051 . - 1,051
December 31, 2017 232,205 200,114 5,154 446,473
Additions 1,164 : - N - 1,164
December 31, 2018 233,360 208,114 5,154 447,637
Amortization
January 1, 2017 225,457 84,347 - 309,804
Amortization for the year 2,358 10,798 - 13,166
December 31, 2017 227,815 95,145 - 322,960
Amortization for the year L 2,436 10,798 - 13,234
December 31, 2018 230,251 105,943 - 336,194
Carrying value:
December 31, 2018 3,118 103,171 5,154 111,443
December 31, 2017 4,390 113,969 5,154 123,513
Amortization for the year has been allocated as follows:
Note 2018 2017
Cost of sales 6 11,360 11,360
General and administrative expenses 8 1,874 1,796
13,234 13,156
Financial assets and financial liabilities
151 Financial assets measured at amortized cost
Long-term foans: Notes 2018 2017
Loan to RAWEC 16.1.1 4,065,479 4,254,940
Loans to employees 15.1.2 216,698 200,637
L.ong-term loans 4,282.177 4,455,577
Less: current portion of long-term foans {420,428) (404,248}
Non-current portion of long-lerm loans 3,861,749 4,051,328
Trade receivahles 1513 6,004,714 5,741,361
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Notes 1o the financial statements for the year ended December 31, 2018
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Financial assets and financial liabilities {continued)

15.4.1 The Company has eniered inlo various agreements namely WECA, Facility Agreement and RAWEC
Shareholders' Agreement (the “Agreements”), dated August 7, 2005 as amended on October 31, 2011,
with RAWEC and other developers, to develop a plant, on build, own and operate basis, to supply
desalinated water, steam and power to the Company. Pursuant to these agreements, the Company
provided a loan to RAWEC amounting to Saud! Riyals 3.9 billion carrying interest rate of 5.76% per
annum. The loan is being setiled in monthly repayments, which commenced from June 30, 2608 and
will run upto November 30, 2023.

Duting the year ended December 31, 2015, pursuant to Amended and Restated Agreement, dated
March 28, 2006 as amended subsequently on March 8, 2015, the Company will provide RAWEC a
portion of project finance, in the total amount of Saudi Riyals 3.3 billion carrying interest rate of 5.7% per
annum to expand the existing independent water, steam and power facliities to meet the requirements
of Phase |l Expansion Project, The loan is being settled in monthly repayments, which commenced fram
July 31, 2016 and will run upto June 30, 2031. These loans are secured by the assets of RAWEC.

The loan is setfled by offseiting against monthly ufiliies payments to RAWEC. During the year ended
December 31, 2018, loan amounting to Saudi Riyals 388.8 million (2017: Saudi Riyals 373.1 million}
have been offset against monthly utilily payments to RAWEC amounting to Saudi Riyals 1,198 million
(2017: Saudi Riyals 1,117.3 million).

15.1.2 The Gompany's eligible employees are provided with loans under an employees’ home ownership
program, The cost of the land is advanced to employees free of interest cost provided the employes
serves the Company for 2 minimum period of four years while the construction cost of the house is
amortized and repayable free of interest to the Company to the extent of 80% over a perfod of seventeen
years. The remalning 10% is amortized over the term of the loan (seventeen years). These loans are
secured by mortgages on the related housing units. Ownership of the housing unit is transferred to the
employea upon full payment of the loan.

15.1.3  Trade receivables of the Company are as follows:

Note 2018 2017

Trade 112,836 250,304
Less: Logs allowance (28,410) {28,410)
84,426 230,084

Related parties 26 5,820,288 5,510,377

6,004,714 5,741,361

Following is the ageing matrix used by the Company for analysis of lrade receivables:

Past due but not impaired

Neither More

past Less More than 24

duenor than6 6to12 12to18 18to24 than24  months

Total impaired months months months months months  impaired

Balance 6,033,124 5,973,936 3,081 20,245 89 7 7,156 28,410
Less: Loss

allowance (28,410) - - - - - - {28,410)

December 31, 2018 6,004,714 5,973,936 3,081 20,245 89 207 7,156 -

December 31, 2017 5,741,361 5,733,441 (1,707} 84 {316} 963 8,896 -

Financial assets also include cash and cash equivalents (Note 16), tima deposits (Note 17) and other receivables
{Note 19) that are measured at amortized cost. Further, substantialty all of the trade receivables are measured at
amortised cost,

15.2 Financlal assets measured at falr value through profit and loss
2018 2017

investment in Rabigh Arabian Water and Electricity Company 16,412 16,412

The Company holds 1% shares in the capital of Rabigh Arabian Water and Electricity Company ("RAWEC”), &
Saudi imited liability company.

The above valuation is carried at Level 3 fair valuation as the management has determined that carrying value of
the investment approximates the fair value.
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15 Financial assets and financial liabilities (continued)

15.3  Financial liabilities measured at amortized cost

Loans, borrowings and other long-term liability

Note 2018 20417
Loans from banks and financial Institutions: 15.3.1
Opening balance 35,030,291 35,457,232
Additions 4,389,835 11,275,269
Repayments (4,307,410} (11,701,510)
Closing balance 35,113,716 35,030,991
Less: current portion {13,007,494)  (3,715,280)
Non-current portion 22,108,222 31,315,711
{ oans from founding shareholders 16.3.2 5,555,980 5,473,166
Other long-term liability 16.3.3 25,815 23,634
Total non-current portion 27,688,017 36,812,511
Trade and other payables 16,34 10,163,333 9,221,871

15.3.1 The Company has entered inlo Consorlium Loan Agreement with commercial banks and financial
institutions for development, design, and construction of integrated refining and petrochemical complex.
‘The facilities avallable under this loan agreement have been utilized in full and drawdowns made which
finished on July 1, 2008, The loan is payable in semi-annual repayments which commenced from June
2011 and will run up to December 2021.

During the year ended December 31, 2015, the Company has further entered into Loan Agreements with
commerciat banks and financial institutions for Phase |l Expansion Project. The faciliies available under
these loan agreements amount to Saudi Riyals 30,630 milfion out of which drawdowns amounting to Saudi
Riyals 28,267.5 million have been made by the Company as at December 31, 2018. The loans amounting
to Saudi Riyals 19,380 million are repayable in semi-annual repayments commencing from June 2019 and
will run up to June 2031, whereas the loan of Saudi Riyals 8,887.5 million has final maturity of July 1, 2019.

The aforementioned loans are denominatad in US Dollass and Saudi Riyals and bear financial charges
based on prevailing market rates, The Joan agreements include financial and operational covenants under
inter-creditor Agresment and other financing documents which among other things; require certain
financial ratios 10 be maintained. The loans are secured by property, plant and equipment, cash and cash
equivalents and time deposits of the Company with a carrying value of Saudi Riyals 44,628 milion and
Saudi Riyals 2,919 million, respeclively.

During the year ended December 31, 2015, the Company entered into & working capital facility of Saudi
Riyals 1,875 millon with a local commercial bank on prevaifing market rates. As at December 31, 2018,

the facility is unutifized (December 31, 2017: unufilized).

15.3.2 Loans from founding shareholders

2018 2017
loans:

Saudi Arabian Ot Company 2,287,500 2,287,500
Sumitomo Chemical Company Limiled 2,287,500 2,287,500

Accumulated interest:
Saudi Arabian Oil Company 490,490 449,083
Sumitorno Chernicat Company Limited 490,480 449,083
5,555,980 5,473,166

Loans from the founding shareholders are availed as part of the Credit Facitity Agreement and bear financial
charges. Repayment shalt be made on demand on achieving the conditions set by the financial institutions under
the Inter-creditor Agreement. The loan is secured by promissory note issuet by the Company in favour of each
shareholder equivalent to drawdowns. During the year ended December 31, 2018, the Company paid interest
amounting to Saudi Riyals 94.5 million to Saudi Arabian Gil Company and Sumitomo Chemical Company Limitsd.
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Financlal assets and financial liabilities {continued)
15.3.3 Other long-term liabllity

Other long-term fiability represents withhelding tax on accumulated interest refating to Sumitomo Chemical
Company in accordance with Saudi Arabian Income Tax Law.

15.3.4 Trade and other payables

2818 2017
Trade payables:
- Related parties 8,837,625 7,861,581
- Others 1,260,690 1,277,509
10,098,315 9,139,470
Other payables — related parties 65,018 82.4()}__
10,163,333 9,221,871

Other payables principally relate to payments made by Founding Shareholders on behalfl of the Company in
respect of seconded employees and other charges (see Note 4.8 and 4.9).

In addition to loans, borrowings and trade payables, financial liabilities include accrued and other liabilities (Note
24) that are measured at amortized cost.

154 Flnancial instruments risk management objectives and policles

Financial risk is inherent in the Company’s activities but is managed through a process of ongoing idenlification,
measurement and monitoring, subject to risk limits and other controls. This process of risk management is ctitical
{o the Company's continuing operations and each individual within the Company is accountable for the risk
exposures relating o respective responsibilities. The Company's policy is lo monitor business risks through
strategic planning process.

Risk management structure

Board of Direclors
The Board of Dirsctors is responsible for the overall rsk management appreach and for approving the risk
management strategies and principles.

Audit commitiee

The audit committee Is appolnted by the Board of Directors. The audit committee assists the Board in carrying
out its responsibilities with respect to assessing the guality and integrity of financial reporing and risk
management, the internal audit thereof and the soundness of the internal controls of the Company.

Internal audit

All key operational, financial and risk management processes are audited by internal audit. Internal audit
examines the adequacy of the relevant policies and procedures and the Company’s compliance with internal
policies and regulatory guidelines. Internal audit discusses the resuits of all assessment with management and
reperts its findings and recommendations fo audit commitice.

The risks faced by the Company and the way these risks are mitigated are summarized below:
Credit risk

Credit risk is the risk that one party to a financial instrument will fail o discharge an obligation and cause the other
party to incur a financial 1oss.

Credit fisk principally arises from cash and cash equivatents, tima deposits, frade receivables, long-term loans
and other receivables. Cash and cash equivatents and time deposits are placed with banks with sound credit
ratings. The majority of rade receivables (98.6%) {December 31, 2017: 96%) is from founding shareholders with
nistorically strong credit ratings, and is staled at respactive realizable values. In the event of disagreement on any
invoice, the marketer is reguired to pay the full value of the invoice prior to resolution of the disagreement, For
trade receivables from third parties, the Gompany has a credit insurance policy with a reputable insurance service
provider. The Company does not obtain coffaterals over receivables. As at December 31, 2018, there were
minimal overdue debts equivalent to 1% (December 31, 2017: 0.6%) of the trade receivables of Company's
allowed credit periods. The loans are receivable from utility service provider and employees and are socured by
utility payments and mortgages on the related housing units, raspectively. The Company is not exposed to
significant credit risk on other receivables,
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Financial assets and financial liabilities {continued)

Markef risk
Commaodity price risk

The Company is exposed to the risk of fuctuations in the pravailing market prices on the refined and
petrochemical products it produces. The Company’s policy is to manage these risks through the use of cantract-
based prices with major customers, based on the agreements entered by the Company (Note 4). The Company
does not enter into commadity price hedging arrarigements.

Fair value and cash flow interest rate risks

Fair value and cash flow interest rate risks are the exposures to various risks assoctated with the effect of
fluctuations in the prevailing interest rates on the Company’s financial positions and cash flows. The Company’s
interest rate risks arise mainly from its short-term deposits, joans from banks and financlal institutions and loans
from founding shareholders, which are at floating rate of interest and are subject to re-pricing on a regutar basis.

Fair value of financial assets and Habilities carried at amortized cost approximate their carrying amounts.
Inferes! rate sensitivity

As at Decomber 31, 2018, itis estimated that a general increase / decreass of 50 basis points in floating Interest
rates on time deposits, loans and borrowings, with ali other variables held constant, would increase / decrease
the Company's net profit for the year by approximately Saudi Riyals 189.9 milion (2017: Saudi Riyals 180.5
million}.

Currency risk

Currency risk Is the risk that the value of a financtal instrument wilf fiuctuate due to changes in foreign exchange
rates. The Company's transactions are principally in Saudi Riyals and US Dollars. The Company monitors the
fluciuation in currency exchange rates and believes that currency risk is not significant to the Company.

Liguidity risk

Liquidity risk is the risk that the Company will not be able to meet its commitments associated with financial
liabilities when they fall due.

Liquidity requirements are monitored on regular basis and the Company ensures that sufficient liquid funds are
available to meet any commitments as they arise. The Company alms to maintain sufficient fevel of its cash and
cash equivalents to meet expected cash outflows of financial Kabilities.

The Company’s financial lisbilities consist of trade and other payables, loans and borrowings, finance lease
liabilities and certain other liabilities. Altfinancial liabilitles except for loans and borrowings, finance lease liabilities,

are non-commission bearing and expected o be settled within 12 months from the date of balance shest,

The following analysis provides the Company's financial liabilities into relevant maturity groupings based on the
remaining period at the batance sheet date to the contractual maturity date. The amounts disclosed in the table
are the contractual undiscounted cash flows. Balances due within 12 months equal their carrying bafances as the
impact of discounting is not significant, except for liabiities against finance leases which are stated at fulure
minimum lease payments.

Less than 3to12
2018 3 months months 2to5years Over5 years

Loans and borrowings 14,042,649 13,410,056 18,312,485

Liabilities against finance leases 11,716 35,281 188,016 571,503
Trade and other payables 8,874,067 1,289,266 - =
Accrued expenses and other liabilities 1,425,989 - - -

10,311,772 15,367,196 13,598,071 18,883,998

2017

Loans and borrowings - 4,607,863 21,936,165 18,643,673
Liabilities against finance leases 11,716 35,281 188,016 618,500
Trade and other payables 7,821,823 1,309,948 - -
Accrued expenses and other liabilities 610,393 - .

8,444,032 6,043,002 22,124,181 19,262,173
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Financial assets and financial liabilities {continued)

Capital management

The primary ohjecfive of the Company's capital management is to ensure that it maintains a strong credit rating
and healthy capital ratios in order to support its business and maximize shareholders’ value,

The Company considers share capital, retained earnings and statutory reserve as Company's capital, The
Company manages its capital structure and makes adjustments to it in light of changes in economic conditions
and the requirements of the financial covenants. To maintain or adjust the capital structure, the Company may
adjust the dividend payment to shareholders, return capital to shareholders or issue new shares.

Cash and cash equivalents

Note 2018 2017
Cash in hand 236 276
Cash at banks - current accounts 625,877 1,031,032
Short term deposits 17 637,500 126,955

1,263,713 1,158,263

Shori term deposits are held by commercial banks and yield financial income al prevaifing market rates.

Time deposits

Note 2018 2017

Time deposits 2,293,105 1,606,028
Less: Deposits with maturity less than three months 16 (637,500} (126,955)
1,655,605 1,478,073

Inventories

2018 2017

Raw materials {at cost) 440,860 369,535
Work-in-progress {at net realizable valug) 847,711 1,040,064
Finished goods {at net realizable value) 808,750 739,545
Goods-in-transit {at cost) 66,512 29,479
Spare parts and consumables {at net realizable value) 1,043,612 843,699

3,207,445 3,022,322

During the year ended December 31, 2018, Saudi Riyals 130.6 million (December 31, 2017: Saudi Riyals €0.8
million) was recognized as an expense under cost of sales In order fo bring the inventory at nat realizable value.

Movement in provision for slow moving spare parts and consumables is as follows:

Note 2018 2017

January 1 77,412 67,334
Additions 6 22,491 10,078
Utilised (19,593} -
December 31 80,310 77412

Prepayments and other receivables

Note 2018 2017
Prepayments 65,592 61,482
Advances fo suppliers 456,841 519,367
Deposits 662 662
Advance income fax and value added tax 1,135,024 25,768
Other recelivables, net 43,945 19,697
1,702,064 626,976

Due from related parties 26 382424 314,541
2,084,488 941,517

35




20

21

22

RABIGH REFINING AND PETROCHEMICAL COMPANY

{A Saudi Joint Stock Company)

Notes to the financial statements for the year ended December 31, 2018
(All amounts in Saudi Riyals thousands unless otherwise stated)

Share capital

The Company's authorised and issued share capital of Saudi Riyals 8.76 billion at December 31, 2018and 2017
consists of 876 million fully paid shares of Saudi Riyals 10 each. The founding shareholders of Ihe Company are
Saudi Arabian Oil Company {Saudi Aramco) and Sumitomo Chemical Company Limited (Sumitomo Chemical)
and each of them hold 37.5% of the shares.

Statutory reserve

In accordance with the Regulation for Companies in the Kingdom of Saudi Arabia, tha Company is required to
transfer each year at least 10% of its net income, afler absorbing accumulated deficit, to a statutory reserve until
such reserve equal 50% of its share capital, This reserve is not avaliahle for distribution to shareholders.

Employees' benefits

Note 2018 2017

End of service benefits 22.1 413,395 348,195

Employee share ownership plan 22.2 6,241 7.098

Employees’ savings program 22.3 115,564 90,142

Total employees benefils 535,200 445,435

Less: Gurrent porfion of employee benefits under accrued and

other liabilities (24,699} (24,728)

Non-current portion of employse benefits 510,501 420,707

221 End of service benefits

2018 2017

Company's own employees 388,768 322,879
Founding shareholders’ seconded employees 24,627 25,316

413,395 348,195

The Company has a post-employment defined benefit plan for its own employees. The benefits are required by
Saudi Arabian labor and Workman Law. The benefit is based on employees’ final salaries and allowances and
their cumulative years of service, as stated in the labor law of Kingdom of Saudi Arabia,

The following table summarizes the components of the net benefit expense recognized in the statement of profit
or loss and statement of comprehensive income and amounts recognized in the statement of financial position.

Net benefit expense recognised in statement of profit or loss: 2018 2017
Current service cost 50,834 43,423
Interest cost on benefit obligation B 11,835 10,022
62,669 53,445
Net benefit expense recognised in statement of comprehensive
income: 2018 2017
Actuarial loss arsing from experience 17,232 2,234
Actuarial {gain) loss arising from changes in demographic assumptions (4,253) 6,686
Actuarial loss ansing from changes in financial assumptions 388 9,120
13,367 18,040
Movement in prasent value of definad benefit obligation: 2018 2017
Defined benefit obligation at beginning of he year 322,879 257,946
Current service cost 50,834 43,423
interest cost 11,8356 10,022
Actuarial loss arsing from experience 17,232 2,234
Actuarial (gain) loss arising from changes in demographic assumptions (4,253) 6,686
Actuarial Joss arising from changes in financial assumplions 388 9,120
Benefits paid {10,147} (6,552)
Defined benefit obligation at end of the year 388,768 322,879
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Employees' benefits {continued}
Significant assumptions used in determining the post-employment defined benefit obligation include the following:

2018 2017

Discount rate A4.25% 3.75%
Salary escalation rate 4% 3.5%
Employers' Employers’

In service mortality Groups Groups
reinsurance rates  reinsurance rates

Withdrawal before normal retirement age Age-wise Age-wise

The weighted average duration of the defined benefit obligation as at December 31, 20181is 11.5 years {December
31, 2017: 14.1 years).

A quantitative sensitivity analysis for significant assumptions on the defined bensfit obligation is shown below:

Discount rate:
2018 2017
1% increase in discount rate 348,217 282,548
1% decrease in discount rate 437,484 372,444
Salary escafation rate:
2018 2017
1% increase in salary escalation rate 438,634 372,644
1% decrease In salary escalation rate 346,518 281,613
Voluntary exlt rate:
2018 2017
5% increase at each age 372,879 307,130
5% decrease at each age 402,077 334,050

The sensitivity analysis above has been determined based on a method that extrapolates the impact on the
defined benefil obligation as a result of reasonable changes in key assumptions occurring at the end of the
reporting period. The sensitivity analysis Is based on a change in a significant assumption, keeping all other
assumptions constant. The sensitivity analysis may not be representative of an actual change in the defined
benefit obligation as it is unlikely that changes in assumptions would oceur in isolation of one another.

222 Employee share ownership plan

During the year ended December 31, 2008, the Board of Directors approved the implementation and operation
of an Employee share ownership plan ("ESOP"), which provides 5 year service awards to certain levels of staft.

The Company arranged with a commercial bank to subscribe for 1.6 million shares during the IPO at the offer
price of Saudi Riyals 21 per share. These ESOP shares are held by the bank in trust for the staff that will become
eligible for an award under the plan. Any of the ESOP shares that do not become issuable to eligible employees
will be dealt with by the bank in accordance with the Company's Instructions, and any disposal proceeds will be
for the account of the Company. The Company recognized the liability through provision by amortizing the total
cost of the ESOP shares on a straight line basis over a period of § years.

Until the ESOP shares become vested and are transferred to staff they are accounted for as a deduction from
shareholders’ equity.

During 2018, the Company has vested 40,800 shares to eligible employees due for entitlement (December 31,
2017: 52,800 shares).

The carrying amount of the liability relating to the ESOP at December 31, 2018 was Saudi Riyals 6.2 mitlion
(2017: Saudi Riyals 7.1 million).
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Employees’ benefits {continued)

223 Employees’ savings program

The Company operates a thrift savings program {the "Program"} an behaif of its employees and the Company
matches the employee contribution with an equal, or lesser, contribution towards the Program that is
commensurate with the employee's participation seniority in the Program.

Balance in employees’ savings program is presented in the statement of financial position as follows:

2018 2017
Current portion (included in accrued expenses and other '
liabilities) 1,222 1,142
Non-current poriion 114,341 89,000
115,563 90,142
Accrued expenses and other liabilities
Note 2018 2017
Accrued bonus 71,560 106,202
Accruad customer rebates 46,269 38,086
Customer advances 13,743 13,824
Social security payable 9,197 8,426
Withholding tax and value added tax payable 897,382 16,809
Accrued expenses 147,316 254,548
Dividend payable 1,120 393
Other 8,612 7,113
1,196,199 445,401
Due to refated parties 26 225,791 164,092
1,425,890 610,353
Zakat and income tax
241 Charge for the year
Zakal and tax for the year is as follows:
2018 2017
Zakat for the year 37,438 27,148
Income tax for the year 236,059 280,894
Deferred tax income for the year (97,790} (219,363)
Zakat in respecl of preceding year 6,703 2,539
income tax in respect of preceding year 99 {1,260)
182,509 89,958
Income iax and deferred tax income has been recognised as follows:
2018 2017
Statement of profit or loss:
Income tax 236,158 279,634
Deferrad tax {25,785} {216,857)
140,373 62,977
Statement of comprehensive income — deferred tax income (2,005) {2,706)

During the year ended December 31, 2017 pursuant to the Royal Order A/136, all the shares in Kingdom resident
companies hetd by Saudi Arabian Oil Company {Saudi Aramco) are subject to income tax law rather than zakat
effective January 1, 2017. Accordingly, income fax has been recognised for Saudi Aramea's owned Interest i

the Company.
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Zakat and Income tax (continued)

Zakat for the year is aftributable to the following componients:

2018 2017
Equity and reserves 11,098,201 11,372,443
tiabitities 41,524,756 40,408,654
Book value of assels (34,331,901} {32,405,359)
Carried forward losses {12,300,952) {15,121,092)
Zakat base 5,890,104 4,343,746
Zakat base atiributable tc general public 1,497,526 1,085 936
Zakat for the year 37,438 27,148

Reconciliation between income tax expense and accounting profit at applicable fax rate Is as follows!

2018 2017
Profit before tax 853,074 1,515,641
Profit subject to incorme tax (75%) 639,806 1,136,731
Income tax at applicable lax rate (20%) 127,961 227,346
Tax effact of non-deductible expenses:
Withholding tax 10,670 5,457
Educational assistance 453 248
Theift savings contributions - 2,077
Others 1,190 1,331
Effect of change in tax status of founding shareholder {principally due . (172,222)

to deferred incoms tax credit} ’

Effect of income tax in respect of preceding year a9 {1,260)
Income tax for the year 140,373 62,977

The Company has filed its Zakat and income tax returns with General Authority for Zakat and Tax {("GAZT" Y up to
the financial year 2017, The Company’s Zakat and tax assessments have been finalized by GAZT up to and
inclusive of the financiat year 2008.

The GAZT has issued assessments for the years 2009 up to 2016 by raising additional Zakat, tax and delay fine
demand of Saudi Riyals 1,349.7 milllon and Saudi Riyals 387.8 milfion, respectively. The Company had filed an
appeal with the Higher Appeal Commitiee, now replaced by Higher Committee of Tax for Conflict and Disputes
(HCTCD) against assessment for the years 2009 and 2010 and submitted a bank guarantee amounting o Saudi
Riyals 43.5 milllon. The General Secretarlat of Tax Committees (GSTC) has requested certain information from
the Company in respect of the appeal refating ta the years 2008 and 2010 in order to facilitate a hearing at the
newly formed HCTCD. The Company has duly submitted the information to GSTC.

The Gompany's objection for the years 2011 to 2016 has been transferred by the GAZT to the recently formed
Internal Sattlement Committee (1SC). The ISC has requested certain information from the Company in respect of
the appeal, which the Company has duly submitted. The management expects a favorable outcome of the
objections against additional demands for the years 2009 to 2010 and 2011 to 2016 respectively.

if any addifional Zakat and lax demand arises on finalization of assessments then it is recoverable to the extent
of Saudi Riyals 809.8 million and Saudi Riyals 377.7 million, respectively from the founding shareholders of the
Company.

Zakat and tax asset and liability

25.1 The movement of zakat and income tax payable is as follows:

2018 2017
Balance at the beginning of the year 308,042 67,074
Pravision for the current year 273,497 308,042
Adjustment for previous years 6,802 1,279
Paymentis _ (314,845) {68,350)
Balance at the end of the year 273,496 308,042
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Zakat and tax asset and liability {continued)

252 The component wise movement of deferred tax asset is as follows:

Tax Trade
Property, losses recelvables
plant and carried Employees’ and
equipment forward benefits inventories Others Total
2018
Balance at the beginning of the
year (1,936,262) 2,201,492 52,229 15,873 8,760 348,002
Tax income recognised in
statement of profit or loss 170,905 {83,869) 7,775 435 539 95,785
Tax income recognised in
statement of comprehensive
income - - 2,005 - - 2,005
Balance at the end of the year (1,759,357) 2,117,623 62,009 16,308 0,265 445882
2017
Balance at the beginning of the
year (1,027,629) 1,126,346 20,999 7,181 1,832 128,729
Tax income recognised in
statement of profit or loss (902,633) 1,075,146 28,524 8,692 6,828 216,657
Tax income recognised in
statement of comprehensive
income - - 2,706 - - 2,706
Balance at the end of the year (1,930,262) 2,201,492 52,229 15,873  B760 348,092

Related party transactions and batances

Related parties comprise of founding sharehalders of the Company being Saudi Aramco and Sumitomo Chemical,
their subsidiaries and associates and other companies with common directorship with significant influence on
other companies and key management personnel. Transactions with related parties arise mainly from purchases,
sales of refined and petrochemical products, credit facilites, secondments and various lease arrangements and

are undertaken at approved confractual terms.

Related party transactions are summarized as follows:

Nature of transactions for the year ended December 31

Saudi Arabian Oil Company and its associated companies
Purchase of goods including LPG shortfall and through-put fee
Sale of refined products and petrochemical products

Finance cost

Secondess’ costs

Rentals

Services provided 1o shareholders

Services and other cost charges {credit), net

Dividend

Sumitomo Chemical Company and its associated companies
Purchase of goods

Sale of petrochemical products

Secondees' costs

Finance cost

Rentals

Services provided {o shareholders

Services and other cost charges {credit), net

Dividend

4Q

2048 2017
38,287,105 27,512,283
39,105,085 29,833,620

115,071 97,764
76,962 51,472
48,502 47,865

600 442
89,745 40,453

164,250 -

2018 2017

334,878 292,276

6,606,508 3,602,655

152,868 161,491

88,672 70,724
709 709
600 442
87,130 121,785
156,038 -
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Notes to the financial statements for the year ended December 31, 2018
(All amounts in Saudi Riyals thousands unless otherwise stated)

Related party transactions and balances (continued)

Significant year-end balances arising from transactions with related parties are as follows:

Notes 2018 2017
Saudi Aramco and its associated companies
Loans and borrewings 15 2,777,990 2,736,583
Trade and other payables 15 8,849,034 7,862 541
Trade and other receivables 15, 19 5,273,578 5022170
Accrued expenses and other ffabilities 23 167,887 69,853
Employees benefits 350 312
2018 2017
Sumitome Chemical and its assoclated companies
l.oans and borrowings 15 2,777,090 2,736,583
Trade and other receivables 15, 19 4,029,134 802,748
Accrued expenses and other liabliities 23 61,904 95,139
Trade and other payables 15 53,609 81,821
Employees benefits 800 1,418

Transactions with key management personnel

Transactions with key management personnel on account of short-term benefits amounted to Saudi 18.7 million
{2017: Saudi Riyals 14.17 million) and are included in secondees’ cost above. The remuneration paid to directors
amounted to Saudi Riyals 1.05 million (2017: Saudi Riyals 0.45 million).

Commitments

{) As at December 31, 2018, lefters of credit issued on behalf of the Company in the normal course of business
amounted to Saudi Riyals 16.9 million {December 31, 2017: Saudi Riyals 24.6 million).

{1} As at Decernber 2018, capital commitments contracted for but not incurred amounted to Saudi Riyals 360.3
million (December 31, 2017: Saudi Riyals 1,185 million).

Also, see Note 13 for lease commitments.

Dividend

The Company’s shareholders in their meeting held on April 24, 2018 approved the distribution of Saudi Riyals
438 million, as cash dividends {Saudi Riyal 0.5 per share} for the financial year 2017, represeniing 5% of the
nominal share value.

Approval and authorization for issue

These financial statements were approved and authorized for issue by the Board of Directors of the Company or
Jumada Thani 14, 1440H (February 19, 2019).
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